Wokingham Borough Council – Clarification Questions for Professional Services Consultancy Contract: OJEU Reference 2018/S 010-018524

	No.
	Date Requested
	Question
	Response
	Date Responded

	1
	23/01/18
	The Method Statements set out in the Invitation of Participate (ITP) make several references to delivery of “services”. Could you please clarify what you mean by the term ‘service’ in the context of the PSC contract?
	The term ‘service’ refers to the services defined in the documentation, including H+T PSC ITP - Schedule 2.docx (Scope – Schedule 1 [Page 16]).
	25/01/18

	2
	24/01/18
	We have reviewed the TUPE information provided in H+T PSC ITP - Schedule 5 Part 2.    Please can the council confirm that more detailed information will be provided at ITT stage?
As it stands, the information provided for WSP staff currently delivering Professional Services is insufficient. 
In order to prepare our pricing at ITT stage we will need specific details on:
o	Annual salary for each member of staff
o	Employers pension contribution %
o	Age and gender – to be able to calculate life insurance costs
o	Annual leave entitlement
o	Sick pay entitlement 
o	Car allowance entitlement (value)
o	Length of service (including notice period)
o	Job title and description of duties for each member of staff 
We need this information so that we can evaluate whether there current role is transferring to the new service arrangements and if so, the individual costs for each member of staff within the new contract.
	WBC requested full detailed TUPE information from its existing suppliers, WSP included. WSP were unwilling to provide the comprehensive TUPE information prior to the SQ submission. Following the tender query, on the 25/01/18 WBC has asked if WSP are willing/able to provide full TUPE information prior to ITT.
A further response will be issued in due course.


A further response was received from WSP dated 29/01/18 which stated: We confirm that more detailed information will be provided for the ITT stage.


	26/01/18








29/01/18

	3
	24/01/18
	Please can you confirm that the required insurance levels set out in the PQQ are correct as these seem high for these types of works.
	This has been referred to WBC’s risk and insurance team dated 26/01/18.

It has been agreed that insurance levels will be reduced to the following values in the documents issued for ITT.
£10M Professional Indemnify
£10M Public Liability
£10M Employers Liability
Insurance levels will be subject to periodic review throughout the term of the contract and adjusted if determined appropriate, additionally the Employer reserves the right to request increases to the levels of insurance provided by the PSCC relating to specific task orders and/or services where it is deemed the stated levels would be insufficient due to specific project risks.
	26/01/18


31/01/18

	4
	24/01/18
	Please can you confirm that you will be issuing a quantified pricing schedule at ITT stage.
	I confirm quantified pricing will be issued at the ITT stage.
	26/01/18

	5
	25/01/18
	Scope of Scale of ICT Services - The ICT question in the Invitation to Participate (ITP) asks for ‘experience of “hosting” ICT systems. Whilst it is understood that this question is ‘backward looking’ and should reflect work we have delivered to clients in the past, in order for us to fully understand the scope and scale of ICT to be provided by the consultant, please could you outline the scope and scale of the ICT services to the provided under the Highways & Transport PSC Contract?
	It would not be for WBC to define the scope and scale of the ICT provided by the PSCC. WBC will be looking for PSCCs who can provide ICT that will support effective and efficient delivery of the services and assist WBC and the wider Highways Alliance partnership meet its objectives.
	26/01/18

	6
	25/01/18
	Requested insurance levels: the levels of insurance cover set out in Schedule 1 – Standard Selection Questionnaire and Schedule 4 – Agreement and Contract Data, Contract Data Part One, Section 8 Indemnity, Insurance and Liability are unusually high for a professional services contract. Please can you advise what risks or types of claims the Council envisage could be as high as £20 million on this contract and would the Council consider lowering the levels required for this contract?
	Please see question 3.
This has been referred to WBC’s risk and insurance team dated 26/01/18.

It has been agreed that insurance levels will be reduced to the following values in the documents issued for ITT.
£10M Professional Indemnify
£10M Public Liability
£10M Employers Liability
Insurance levels will be subject to periodic review throughout the term of the contract and adjusted if determined appropriate, additionally the Employer reserves the right to request increases to the levels of insurance provided by the PSCC relating to specific task orders and/or services where it is deemed the stated levels would be insufficient due to specific project risks.
	26/01/18



31/01/18

	7
	26/01/18
	Questions and Clarifications - We note the commitment in paragraph 6.3 of the ITF for the Council to post all responses to tenderers’ queries on the Contracts Finder website throughout the process. Please can the Council confirm that all potential bidders will be receiving details of all questions and answers at the same time through this mechanism, irrespective of whether or not they asked the question. We would be grateful if you could respond to this query?
	I’m not entirely sure what question you are asking here; so please excuse the two part response, which I hope will cover the subject properly: -

1. WBC can confirm that it will meet the commitment in paragraph 6.3 of the ITP.
Questions are answered on a 1-2-1 basis as soon as possible and a summary of all questions received – suitably anonymised – is issued via Contracts Finder regularly throughout the procurement process.
1. WBC is not obliged to provide answers to questions to all parties at the same time, we merely have to ensure that all parties are given sufficient time to take account of the answers to any questions in their submitted tenders. To that end PCR2015 mandates that there is a minimum period of 6-days between the final set of responses being issued by the Council and the deadline for tender returns.
The “Indicative Timetable…” in Section 11 of the ITP, indicates the deadline for questions and date of issuing of responses for each Stage of the Competitive Procedure with Negotiation. You will see that these meet the requirements of PCR2015. Please note: this is an indicative timetable, which may be changed at any time at the sole discretion of the Council.

This response is a case in point: you are receiving a direct 1-2-1 response to your questions today. The same question, together with our responses, will be added to the Clarification Questions document and issued, along with any other Q&Rs, in the next update to Contracts Finder.

I trust this answers your question.
	29/01/18

	8
	29/01/18
	Can you please give us the split of work commissioned through the current WBC PSC (held by WSP) of time charge commissions and lump sum. The cumulative value per year for all works and the percentage split between both will help us develop our commercial model and be an important factor in our go / no go decisions for both the ITP and full ITT.
	The vast majority of the services tendered as part of the PSCC from April 2019 will be time charged. The contract documentation hosted provides estimated annual value/range.
	29/01/18

	9
	29/01/18
	Please can you advise if it will acceptable to insert images in to the response document to form part of our response?
	It is not acceptable to insert images and WBC direct you to clause 8.8 “Any wording over the limit or the use of embedded documents, or references to external links, or appendices to questions, or cross-references to other questions, (except where explicitly allowed for in the question) will not be evaluated”.
	29/01/18

	10
	30/01/18
	 Contract Objectives: Within several of the Method Statement questions within the ITP reference is made to delivery of ‘objectives’ for a similar service (Q2), or meeting the ‘objectives of WBC’ (Q3), please can you clarify when reference is made to the ‘objectives of WBC’ if this is referring to the Employers objectives for the services as set out in Schedule 4 – Employers Objectives for the Service, Schedule 2 – Scope, or whether this is referring to the Council’s wider transport and corporate policies?
	WBC’s objectives relating to the contract and services to be provided from April 2019 are set out in Schedule 6.
	31/01/18

	11
	31/01/18
	Could you please confirm that tables, figures and diagrams are excluded from the word count limits for the Method Statements
	Tables, figures and diagrams are allowed to be part of a response but the words they contain WILL BE INCLUDED in the overall word count for that Method Statement.
Numerical figures, including those that may be provided in tables or diagrams, will be counted as one word per numerical figure towards the overall word count total.
	01/02/18

	12
	01/02/18
	We are aware that the co-located incumbents could have additional knowledge of the changing staff structures at the council.  Could you please clarify the latest structure and how the PSC would report into the services?  
	Details of the emerging WBC client and 21st Century Council have been made available to suppliers as part of the soft market engagement events throughout 2017, and provided in Schedule 6. The client form is still evolving and will evolve further to cater for the new contracts from April 2019. Any changes to the information already  communicated that, in the Council’s sole opinion, will materially influence the responses from potential suppliers  or the nature of the evaluation will be made available to all candidates in a timely manner.
	02/02/18

	13
	01/02/18
	We are aware that not all staff within the structure are direct employees of the council.  Can you therefore confirm who or what are the roles of the individuals who are on the evaluation panel for the tender submissions?
	WBC will not share details of the structure of its evaluation panel since this may inadvertently identify the individuals concerned. In accordance with its obligations, WBC will ensure that the evaluation is undertaken by those with an appropriate level of knowledge and skill and who are impartial. The whole tender process will be overseen by WBC’s Procurement team, to ensure it remains compliant with the Regulations.
	02/02/18

	14
	01/02/18
	Are the quality scores from the ITP evaluation carried through to the ITT phase?
	No.
	02/02/18

	15
	01/02/18
	Are the council open to other pricing models for the PSC, rather than just the staff rates as indicated in Schedule 3?  If so, can the council clarify the mechanism to discuss this in more detail?
	WBC will supply a quantified pricing model to support the ITT, which is WBC’s chosen pricing model.
	02/02/18

	16
	01/02/18
	In Schedule 7, the Transport Vision 2036 is referred to as an attached document.  This document wasn't included within the contracts finders site.  Can this be sent to bidders?
	The Transport Vision to 2036 is provided within the Soft Market Discovery Information pack embedded word doc. within Schedule 6.
	02/02/18

	17
	01/02/18
	The embedded PDF links to the Council's 21cc objectives do not work in either Schedule 6 or 7.  Can the correct one be issued to all bidders?
	The web locations have recently been modified by WBC’s ICT team; an additional document will be made available on Contracts Finder with new web. Thank you for pointing this out and allowing us to correct.
	02/02/18

	18
	01/02/18
	If we are successful in progressing to the ITT stage, will we get feedback on our quality response from the ITP stage?
	WBC will be happy to provide feedback on the ITP submission to successful bidders, if requested.
Feedback will necessarily be limited to a summary of the evaluator’s comments regarding the submission from the supplier requesting feedback only. No comparison to the scores of other successful bidders will be available at this stage, since this is deemed to be anti-competitive. 
	02/02/18

	19
	02/02/18
	We would like to submit the ITP information in a different format to show the standard of professional documentation the council would receive from our company as the service provider.  In doing so, we do not want to make the evaluation more difficult for the council or fall foul of procurement rules.  Could you clarify the preferred format, particularly involving graphics and additional headers/footers?
	WBC requires the SQ to be submitted in accordance with the instructions in the ITP. We recognise that this may curtail suppliers artistic licence, however WBC are more concerned with the content and substance of responses; using the documents supplied will ensure a level playing field for those who chose to participate.
NOTE: You are reminded that the requirements of the ITP will be strictly enforced and applied consistently to all bidder responses.
	02/02/18

	20
	06/02/18
	Please could you provide your rationale for specifying this contract is to be awarded to a single supplier only with capability to cover all services as described in Section 3 of the ITP.  It is our understanding that these services would typically involve different, specialist expertise and in this requirement puts large, multidisciplinary organisations at an obvious advantage over smaller specialist SME’s.  Regulation 46 of the 2015 Public Contracts Regulations requires authorities to explain in writing any decision not to divide this contract into smaller Lots.
Given the recent problems with public sector organisations in contracting to large multi-disciplinary organisations (e.g. Carillion) we therefore request that you reconsider the structure and specification of this procurement exercise for the following reasons:
1.	The balance of this exercise prevents fair and equal competition from SME’s with less previous experience - the questionnaire has a weighting towards extensive previous experience in similar large contracts, as compared to e.g. innovative ways to deliver services.
2.	The narrow timescales given for this competition is prohibitive to smaller organisations that have not undertaken this type of exercise previously and do not have the same resources at their disposal.   
3.	There are many SME’s including ours that are just as capable at delivering the services required and additionally would deliver the following:   
a.	Outstanding innovative solutions that can only be achieved through entrepreneurialism and capacity to progress quickly 
b.	Significant cost-savings through more innovative solutions
c.	Smaller financial risk through apportionment of budget across multiple SME’s
d.	Outstanding quality of service that can only be delivered through specialist service providers compared to large corporations inherently focused on efficiencies of scale
e.	Local quality of care and local economic gains compared to those with multinational interests  
4.	Section 5.5 of the 2014 Guide to EU Public Procurement Directives states – “Contracting authorities are encouraged to break contracts into lots to facilitate SME participation.” 
5.	The 2 stage process prohibits all but 1 or 2 companies from entering any Competitive Dialogue/Negotiation.  This significantly limits the Council’s opportunity to identify and discuss options that service providers can potentially bring to the table.
6.	The growing National concern and evidence base on whether large, multi-disciplinary organisations actually deliver real-value for money to the public over the course of a contract.
We thank you in advance for your careful consideration of our request and the points raised, and look forward to your response.
	The future shaping of these key contracts was the subject of a series of stakeholder engagement exercises during late 2016 and early 2017 with Council Officers, Members and Town and Parish Councils and two soft market engagement events, the first “discovery” session on 19th June 2017 with a following “informing” session on 18th September 2017.
The outcome of these events and the subsequent Market Update document, issued on 11th December 2017, is included in Schedule 6 to the ITP.
These consultations and analysis of the potential operating models carried out by the project team, using the Highway Maintenance Efficiency Programme commissioning toolkit, was discussed with and ratified by the H&T Service Review and Contract Re-provision Project Board. This indicated that two contracts, one covering Maintenance and Construction and the other Professional Services Consultancy, best met the requirements of the Council in response to its 21st Century Council Programme and the Councils Transport Vision.
The Council is fully aware of its obligations under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, as amended, and has gone to considerable lengths to ensure that the adopted procurement approach will best meet its needs. In fact, the approach is not a standard procedure for WBC and has been selected to specifically address the needs of these tenders.
To answer your specific points: -
1) The tender is specifically designed to allow for a transparent, fair and equal competition from those companies who can meet the needs of the Council.
2) The procurement timescales at each stage exceed the statutory minimums laid out in PCR2015 and are felt to be reasonable and proportionate to the amount of effort involved.
3) WBC do not doubt the capabilities of your own, and other, SMEs; WBC merely require you to demonstrate your ability to meet our needs, as described in the tender documents.
4) WBC are aware of this guidance; you’ll note that it is not mandatory.
5) The staged process is intended to facilitate discussions with 3 to 5 potential suppliers for each Contract; indeed PCR2015 requires that a minimum of 3 suppliers is invited to participate in stage 2, if sufficient potential suppliers meet the statutory criteria at Stage 1. In accordance with the general tenets of PCR2015, this is sufficient to ensure real competition exists.
6) WBC agree that this is a growing concern. The contract is specifically designed to engender a close working partnership between the two contractors and the Council to ensure a regime of continuous improvement and innovation. It is considered that when this is combined with effective contract management, a cost effective service can be delivered.
	07/02/18

	21
	06/02/18
	Due to the high volume of tenders with deadlines throughout next week we would politely like to request a short extension of time till Monday 19th February? We would greatly appreciate this extra time should this be possible.
	The procurement timetable was originally proposed in documentation supporting the PIN in May 2017 and has been reviewed at both soft market engagement days, in June and September 2017. No concerns were raised by any potential supplier, throughout this process. Any deviation from the publicised timetable will cause problems for WBC’s evaluation resources and place the key WBC Approval Decision process at risk. These contracts require ratification at WBC Full Council, which is on a quarterly cycle. For these reasons, we are unable to grant your request for an extension and the procurement process will proceed as publicised. We do hope that you will be able to meet these timescales and submit a tender at Stage 1.
	07/02/18

	22
	06/02/18
	I would be grateful if you can advise whether Wokingham Borough Council accept Health and Safety Accreditation from Contractors Health and Safety Assessment Scheme (CHAS), Constructionline or equivalent in Tender responses.
	Yes. WBC will accept Health and Safety Accreditation from Contractors Health and Safety Assessment Scheme (CHAS), Constructionline, and any scheme that is recognised as equivalent by SSIP, in tender responses.
	07/02/18
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